



# Equity Subcommittee

Tuesday, October 1st, 2024

9:30-11am

City Hall Lobby, RM Tribal Room

[Meeting Link](#)

+1 323-618-1887

Phone Conference ID: 994 148 536#

**TIMES GIVEN ARE AN ESTIMATE AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

## Land Acknowledgment & Welcome

9:30 [Land Acknowledgement](#), attendance

9:35 Approve September minutes

## Subcommittee Briefing Session:

9:40	Intro Police Chief Kevin Hall	SPD Chief Kevin Hall
------	-------------------------------	----------------------

10:10	Equity Subcommittee Bylaws – member length of terms	Alex Gibilisco
-------	---	----------------

10:15	Language Access Recruitment Ordinance	Andres Grageda
-------	---------------------------------------	----------------

10:25	SC feedback structure, guidelines, response letter(s), verbal to presenters	All
-------	---	-----

10:40	Council Duties and Responsibility (CM Zappone) follow up	Sarah Dixit
-------	--	-------------

## Standing Update(s):

	Council Liaison Update	CM Navarrete
--	------------------------	--------------

	Share successes in life, work, or advancing equity	
--	--	--

	Recruitment	
--	-------------	--

## 11:00 Adjournment

- Next Equity Subcommittee Meeting, November 5th, at 9:30am, City Hall, Tribal Room (1<sup>st</sup> floor)

**AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) INFORMATION:** The City of Spokane is committed to providing equal access to its facilities, programs and services for persons with disabilities. The Council Briefing Center in the lower level of Spokane City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., is wheelchair accessible and also is equipped with an infrared assistive listening system for persons with hearing loss. Headsets may be checked out (upon presentation of picture I.D.) through the meeting organizer. Individuals requesting reasonable accommodations or further information may call, write, or email Risk Management at 509-625-6221, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd, Spokane, WA, 99201; or [mLOWmaster@spokanecity.org](mailto:mLOWmaster@spokanecity.org). Persons who are deaf or hard of hearing may contact Human Resources through the Washington Relay Service at 7-1-1. Please contact us forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting date.

**EQUITY SUBCOMMITTEE MINUTES**  
**City of Spokane**  
**Equity Subcommittee**  
**City Hall – Tribal Conference Room**  
**09/03/24**

---

**Call to Order:** 9:34am

**Attendance**

Subcommittee Members Present:

Sarah Dixit, KJ, Jesus Torres, Tyler Tamoush, Jacky Garcia (filling in for Ana Trusty)

Staff Present:

CM Lili Navarrete, Alex Gibilisco, Andres Grageda, Nicolette Ocheltree ([nocheltree@spokanecity.org](mailto:nocheltree@spokanecity.org), (509)828-7655), Paradis Pourzanjani, Mark Carlos, Shae Blackwell ([sblackwell@spokanecity.org](mailto:sblackwell@spokanecity.org), (509)828-0123), Jackson Deese ([ideese@spokanecity.org](mailto:ideese@spokanecity.org)), Katie Anderson

Others Present:

Tia Moua

**Approval of Minutes**

- Voted to Approve August Minutes

**Agenda Items**

**Briefing Items**

1. Siting of City-Owned and City-Funded Support Facilities – CM Cathcart, Shae Blackwell
  - No Action Taken, Discussion Only
    - Equity Subcommittee’s role would be expanded in the following ways to evaluate :
      - evaluation of proposed comprehensive strategies for mitigation and prevention of any anticipated or unanticipated nuisance and/or criminal activity impacting surrounding neighborhood;
      - consideration of geographic equity, evaluating both current and historic distribution patterns of highly impactful services; and
      - the proposed Good Neighbor Agreement to be executed in connection with the facility.

2. Council Duties & Responsibilities – Jackson Deese
  - No Action Taken, Discussion Only
    - Discussed the Salary Review Commissions’ roles and responsibilities and how the Equity Subcommittee might be able to assist them. Discussed the salaries of Spokane’s elected officials and how they are/should be decided.
    - How can Council members show up more equitably?
    - Where can Council Members add or subtract work?
    - What expectations do constituents have for Council members’ workload? And how does that match reality?
3. Visit Bylaws Including Length of Terms – Alex Gibilisco
  - Postponed Until Next Month
4. Check in on Goal Progress - Everyone
  - Postponed Until Next Month

#### Standing Updates

1. Council Liaison Update – CM Navarrete
2. Share Successes in life, work or advancing equity
3. Recruitment

#### Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 10:48am.

Next Equity Subcommittee Meeting, October 1<sup>st</sup>, at 9:30am, City Hall, Tribal Room (1<sup>st</sup> floor)

#### Prepared by:

Andres Grageda, Assistant to CM Navarrete

#### Approved by:

---

Sarah Dixit  
Equity Subcommittee Chair

2024

# Equity Subcommittee Bylaws

SPOKANE CITY COUNCIL OFFICE

SPOKANE CITY COUNCIL OFFICE | 808 W Spokane Falls Blvd

# Table of Contents

Introduction	2
Background	2
Equity Subcommittee Purpose	2
Land Acknowledgement	3
Equity Subcommittee Vision	3
Work-area Outcomes	3
Operating Guidelines	4
Roles and Responsibilities	6
Workgroups	7
Subcommittee Making a Recommendation	8
Criteria for department work to be brought to the subcommittee	9
Conflict Resolution	10

## Introduction

The Equity Subcommittee is an official ad hoc subcommittee of the Spokane City Council's Finance and Administration Committee. It was established pursuant to City Council Resolution 2021-0098, which was adopted November 29, 2021. Under the terms of the resolution, the Equity Subcommittee was given broad discretion in conducting its affairs so long as its meetings complied with the state's Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records Act. As practical matter this means its meetings are to be open to the public, with the time, place and agenda of each meeting provided to the public in advance. All records of the committee (other than those governed by specific exceptions) are subject to public disclosure.

Within these basic limitations, these bylaws set forth how the Equity Subcommittee will operate. In other words, these bylaws are intended to foster an environment of honest and productive exchange of ideas in a way that is not unnaturally beholden to traditional rules.

## Background

### Equity Subcommittee Purpose

We are here as Black, Indigenous, Latinx, Pacific Islander, Native Hawaiian Islander, Asian, immigrant, refugee, able-bodied and disabled people bringing views and experiences to inform policies, budget and practices of the agencies that manage the City on behalf of the public and create an environment that is open and transparent. We are the survivors of displaced people both native to this land as well as from many places around the world who recognize our interconnectedness and inseparability to place, culture and land, and that we need to be in connection with the places we live.

We are here to advance racial equity, diversity, and inclusion and put them into action to bring the changes we want to see: Real access for all abilities, real inclusion of all people, real change.

We are here to learn the current structures that govern our systems, and to help frame and shape them into structures that authentically support all members of the diverse public.

We are here because we stand at the intersection of racial, social, cultural, economic, and environmental justice.

We are here because we bring a diverse set of skills, abilities, and experiences to the table which inform how we work and how we innovate for changes in government to better reflect the needs of ALL people, not just those with traditional access to power.

We are here to increase the strength and resilience of our communities by working together, to learn from one another, and to take what we learn and apply it to how we work with government agencies.

We are here because we care profoundly, and we want to serve to the best of our ability to benefit everyone in our regional community.

## Land Acknowledgement

We acknowledge that we are on the unceded land of the Spokane people. And that these lands were once the major trading center for the Spokanes as they shared this place and welcomed other area tribes through their relations, history, trade, and ceremony. We also want to acknowledge that the land holds the spirit of the place, through its knowledge, culture, and all the original peoples Since Time Immemorial.

As we take a moment to consider the impacts of colonization may we also acknowledge the strengths and resiliency of the Spokanes and their relatives. As we work together making decisions that benefit all, may we do so as one heart, one mind, and one spirit.

We are grateful to be on the shared lands of the Spokane people and ask for the support of their ancestors and all relations. We ask that you recognize these injustices that forever changed the lives of the Spokane people and all their relatives.

We agree to work together to stop all acts of continued injustices towards Native Americans and all our relatives. It is time for reconciliation. We must act upon the truths and take actions that will create restorative justice for all people.

## Equity Subcommittee Vision

The purpose of the Equity Subcommittee is to identify and dismantle racial and social economic inequities in City services, programs, and decision-making processes by collaborating with City Council and administration. The goal is to disrupt the existing mechanisms to ensure that outcomes and opportunities for all people are not predictable, by race, gender identity, income, gender expression, sexual orientation, country of origin, immigration status, religion, disability, or lived experience.

**Commented [GA1]:** Look at examples of other Cities; GARE folder. 50-100 racial equity plans (reach out to Jordan)

## Work Areas Outcomes

### Desired Outcomes

The Equity Subcommittee and the City Council's Finance and Administration Committee will work together to ensure;

- There is opportunity for long-term relationship building and collaboration.
- Successful developing and implementation of the equity, anti-racism and belonging action plan.
- Framework to evaluate proposals to meet equitable outcomes
- Subcommittee members are meaningfully engaged in evaluating identified policies, programs, processes, and projects.
- The subcommittee provides clear, consensus-based recommendations and/or guidance to the department.
- City Council leadership participates in Equity Subcommittee on a regular basis to build relationships, trust, authenticity, and transparency.
- Council initiative managers and staff clearly understand how to work with the Equity Subcommittee, bring subcommittee members in at the right time for best use of their skills, and provide appropriate background information prior to work-specific conversations.

- Work towards recognizing lived experience as a valuable and provide stipends when seeking input from the community.
- City Council decisions recognize and respect contributions of the Equity Subcommittee.

## Equity Subcommittee Operating Guidelines

### Convening of Meetings / Communication

- In-person meetings will be held during the week at a time and place most people are available to attend.
- On occasion longer retreats will be held at mutually agreed upon times and locations.
- Virtual meetings will be held at mutually agreed upon times.
- In-person meetings will be held in accessible and inclusive spaces, most regularly at City Hall at 808 W Spokane Falls Blvd, Spokane WA 99201, unless otherwise decided by the group.
- When in-person meetings are not possible, meetings will be held virtually via accessible video/phone conference software at an appointed and agreed-upon time and frequency.
- When in-person meetings are held, a virtual option to participate will be made available for those who prefer or need to maintain social distance.
- When meetings are scheduled in-person (with virtual participation as needed) they will take place monthly and will be 1.5 hours.
- When meetings are virtual, they will take place monthly and will be 1.5 hours, with the option to log-in up to 15-minutes before the meeting starts to ensure equipment is functioning appropriately.
- The Council staff liaison (at this time the Equity Initiative Manager) will provide and the meeting materials and agenda (along with minutes of prior meeting(s)) for the upcoming meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the next meeting. These materials will be provided via email, with additional phone follow-up for those who desire or need additional accommodation.
- Twice a year, the subcommittee will meet with to focus on continuing relationship building and inter-committee and committee/council dialogue.
- Equity Subcommittee members are encouraged to meet informally (in person or virtual) with rotating members of the Equity Subcommittee, including Council members and council staff, to build connections and relationships between regular meetings. Equity Subcommittee members are encouraged (but not required) to share the results of such informal meetings with the entire Subcommittee.

### Conduct of meetings

- Meetings will be facilitated by the council staff, chair, or a third-party facilitator.
- Meetings will end with a clear understanding of expectations and assignments for next steps.
- Meetings are expected to end at the appointed time.
- City Council staff support will keep a record of meeting attendees, key issues raised, and actions required.
- Comments from individual members will generally not be attributed and a verbatim record of the meeting will not be prepared.



- Twice a year, the committee will have a retreat to connect, with the focus and emphasis on continuing relationship building and within the subcommittee, council office, and community.
- Twice a year, council staff will meet one-on-one with each member to understand how to better support each member.

#### Subcommittee Meeting Agreements

- Through the following team norms, we strive to live up to our organizational values of Integrity, Compassion, Respect, Equity, Collaboration, and Innovation.
- **Cultivate brave space**
- **Speak your truth** (and speak truth, not about saying it right or trying to be perceived in a particular way)
- **Move up, move back**
- **Be accountable for your impact** (vs. your intention)
- **Be open and curious**
- **Notice your own defensive reactions** and attempt to use these reactions as entry points for gaining deeper self-knowledge, rather than as a rationale for closing off.\*
- **Recognize how your own social positional** (e.g., race, class, gender, sexuality, ability) informs your perspectives and reactions to your colleagues and facilitators\*
- **Differentiate between safety and comfort.** Accept discomfort as necessary for social justice and racial equity growth. (Often times, we think about comfort as safety, but they're actually different things.) Understand when you or others are actually unsafe because you or they are the targets of racism and/or other forms of oppression.
- **Identify where your learning edge is and push it.** For example, whenever you think, I already know this, ask yourself, "How can I take this deeper?" Or, ask "How am I applying in practice what I already know?"
- **Accept and expect non-closure** - This agreement asks participants to "hang out in uncertainty" and not rush to quick solutions, especially in relation to racial understanding, which requires ongoing dialogue

#### Agenda Setting and Meeting Format

- In-person meetings will provide time to spend time with one another prior to the meeting start.
- Agenda will be co-created with chair, co-chair, council staff and council liaison.
- The agenda will hold space and identify a person to deliver a land acknowledgement.
- The agenda will consider time for people to check-in and share updates.
- The agenda will maintain time in the schedule monthly, every other month, or quarterly as determined by the committee, for learning about the City and processes of governance.
- The agenda will allow for time for people to ask clarifying questions before diving in deeply on to a topic for discussion.
- The agenda will create opportunities for small group discussions in addition to large group conversation.
- The agenda will have time for review of agreements and assignments at the end of each meeting to ensure mutual understanding of expectations prior to the next meeting.
- The agenda will provide opportunity for stretch or movement at least every 90 minutes for one to two minutes to support people's minds and bodies.

- The meeting space will reflect accessibility needs of participants, including but not limited to the limitation of perfumes and scents, specific lighting needs, chairs without arms to accommodate different body types and sizes, as well as space for those using mobility devices.
- Participants logging in virtually to in-person meetings will be placed on a screen/computer at the table near the meeting liaison or facilitator with a speaker to amplify their voice as they participate in the meeting real time.

### Roles and Responsibilities

The Equity Subcommittee is an advisory group to Finance and Administrations Committee

Equity subcommittee members agree to:

- Provide specific community expertise, including identifying emerging local issues.
- Review materials provided and comment promptly when assigned to do so.
- Attend all meetings possible and prepare appropriately.
- Complete all necessary assignments prior to each meeting.
- Relay information to their communities after each meeting and gather information/feedback from their community members as practicable before each meeting.
- Articulate and reflect the interests that the committee members bring to the table.
- Maintain a focus on solutions that benefit the people and environment of the region.
- Discuss, ask questions, and give reflection, feedback and guidance to City Council on department work regarding policies, programs, processes, and projects brought to the subcommittee.
- Continue to learn how City Council operates to then share with community.
- In sharing your expertise with City Council, be an independent and honest voice.

City Council, staff and council leaders agree to:

- Timely equip members with the information needed to support their role on ~~the Equity~~the Equity Subcommittee, when such information is available to staff.
- Provide the Equity Subcommittee members the opportunity to collaborate, co-create and inform on council work to support the advancement of racial equity, using among other tools a recognized engagement ~~spectrum~~spectrum.
- Ensure that council members and staff are embedded at Equity Subcommittee meetings to listen, ask ~~questions~~questions, and connect, to ensure ongoing trust, relationship building and transparency.
- Invite Equity Subcommittee members to participate in other subcommittees and projects facilitated by City Council policy staff (i.e., SAS, HAS, etc.)
- Come to the Equity Subcommittee at the onset of the planning process and in advance of each decision point, allowing them to interact directly with decision makers rather than later as a review body.
- Keep the Equity Subcommittee informed quarterly of progress and how their guidance has supported department work.
- Provide an updated timeline of work projects related to policy, processes, ~~programs~~programs, and projects for the Equity Subcommittee to identify where they best want to focus their current efforts.

- Provide technical expertise and break down concepts into everyday language for conversation.
- Manage logistics for ~~meetings;~~meetings, including food and any special accommodations.
- Explain the reasons if deviations are taken from Equity Subcommittee recommendations and provide insight on how to make improvements in the future for recommendations.

### Chair and Vice Chair Responsibilities

The subcommittee will elect a chair and vice chair. The term of the chair is for one year, and up to two years if voted on by the members. The term of the vice chair is for up to two years, with the expectation that the following term they will serve as the chair. Candidates for the role will be self-nominated, the candidate with majority of the votes will be appointed to that role.

**Commented [GA2]:** Vote for more one year, Consider "up to two years"

Roles:

The Chair will help facilitate meetings, co-create agenda with city council staff and council member liaison. The Chair will assist council staff and council member liaison with resolving conflicts amongst the group.

Vice-chair will co-create agenda with city council staff and council member liaison.

Council Member Liaison is annually appointed by the City Council. Works with assigned council staff, chair, and co-chair to create the agenda. Will also support resolving group conflicts. Council member liaison in partnership with chair or designated subcommittee member will present recommendations to council. Council member liaison will keep Equity Subcommittee members updated on recommendations at the monthly meeting.

### Membership from outside the City limits- tribes, equity practitioners and liaison roles – voting

#### Membership

Per Council resolution 2021-0098, the Equity Subcommittee must have at least five (5) members, each appointed by the City Council. Membership of the Subcommittee shall consist of those persons appointed by the City Council from time to time as well as the Council Liaison and the Council's Equity Initiative Manager and Applications to the subcommittee will be hosted on the Equity Subcommittee Webpage. Interested person(s) will be invited to attend the scheduled Equity Subcommittee meeting to gauge the applicant's interest. At the following meeting the subcommittee members will determine whether to recommend to City Council to appoint the applicant to the Equity Subcommittee.

Membership term is set for 3 years. Members can seek reappointment by informing council liaison, and Equity Initiative Manager.

**Formatted:** Highlight

A member's position on the workgroup may be declared vacant if the member:

- Resigns from the workgroup in writing or expresses the intent to resign at a regular meeting of the Subcommittee
- Fails to attend more than two consecutive meetings without prior notice
- A member is removed after a determination by the Chair and Council Member Liaison that the member's participation is disruptive to the subcommittee's work.

## Work Groups

Equity Subcommittee members may decide they would like to focus on a particular area of interest or council has requested feedback. In these cases, workgroups may be formed for this purpose. These workgroups will meet at different times from the regular monthly meetings, and on a date and place agreed upon by those in the workgroups.

- The number of members participating in a workgroup may not equal or exceed a quorum of the Subcommittee.
- So long as the members present at a meeting of a workgroup does not equal or exceed a quorum of the Subcommittee, the meeting will not be subject to Open Public Meetings Act.
- Whenever practical, the result of the workgroup will be presented at monthly Equity Subcommittee meeting, along with any proposed next step.
- Work groups may invite other community members to assist in research and refine proposals.

## Decisions and Recommendations Actions of the Subcommittee

The Equity Subcommittee is an advisory body to the City Council. As such, and because by council resolution its meetings are subject to the Open Public Meetings Act, it is necessary to define the voting methods and quorum requirements of the Subcommittee.

### Quorum

- A “quorum” of the Subcommittee shall consist of at least fifty percent (50%) of the members of the Subcommittee, including the Council Liaison and Council Initiative Manager

### Voting

- Any recommendation, decision or proposal of the Subcommittee is to be approved by consensus of those members of the Subcommittee (including the Council Liaison and Council Initiative Manager) who are present (in person or by virtual means) at the time of the vote regarding such recommendation, decision, or proposal. Members will strive to reach agreement by consensus at a level that indicates that the large majority of the members present are willing to “live with” the proposed action.
- At the end of a dialogue period, members will indicate their preference for a recommendation, decision, or proposal with a show of “thumbs up” (good to go), “thumbs to the middle” (can live with it) or “thumbs down” (do not approve of proceeding.)
- If there are members of the committee in the “thumbs down” position, the Chair will continue the dialogue to further assess and understand assess those points in contention, and possibly revise the recommendation, decision, or proposal before a final tally of the vote of the committee.
- If a consensus cannot be reached on a particular issue, the committee acknowledges that the Council Liaison shall have final authority to determine how to proceed, including, but not limited to, allowing the matter to be resolved by simple majority vote of those members present (in person and virtually).

## Criteria for Department Work to be Brought to the Committee

*\*Please check with ES staff manager to if confirmation of this unlikeliness is required.*



For the 2023 - 2024 period, within the framework of implementation, projects brought to the Equity Subcommittee should be considered if they have the potential to affect:

- Advancing racial equity and belonging
- Advance an Equitable Budget Process
- Economic impact in communities (via contracting, hiring, recruitment, grant-making, paid partnership, or via impacts to economic justice)
- Health Equity
- Environmental justice
- Disability justice and inclusion
- Advancing successful outcomes for communities
- Project should be early enough in development that the committee has capacity for impact rather than a “rubber stamp”.
- Initiative managers, with a solid understanding of their roles and responsibilities (see roles and responsibilities section) may submit proposed work to the committee through the City Council subcommittee liaison.
- The committee will then have an opportunity to assess work they would like to take on 2023 - 2024.
- The committee will determine the portfolio of work to take on with consideration to timeline and potential for impact.

## Conflict Resolution

When an issue arises that cannot be easily resolved, the Equity Subcommittee committee agrees to:

- Remember that relationships, trust, and transparency are central to moving the dial forward on racial equity.
- Determine if the issue should be resolved within or outside of the subcommittee meeting and participate however is appropriate.
- Ensure the appropriate decision makers are at the table to resolve the issue.

ORDINANCE NO. C - \_\_\_\_\_

An ordinance relating to Language Access and the recruitment of bilingual and multilingual applicants to the City of Spokane, and amending Sections 18.11.040 and 18.11.050 of the Spokane Municipal Code.

**WHEREAS**, nearly 8% of Spokane residents reported speaking a language other than English at home; and

**WHEREAS**, Spokane Public Schools (SPS) estimates students throughout the school district represent nearly 80 different languages; and

**WHEREAS**, in 2023, the City Council adopted Ordinance C36449, which requires City departments to establish a language access program, including identifying vital government documents for regular translation and interpretation services for municipal proceedings; and

**WHEREAS**, the growing number of Spokane residents speaking a language other than English, combined with the requirement to create a Language Access Program for municipal operations, creates a need for more bilingual/multilingual persons employed by the City of Spokane, especially in divisions with high public interaction; and

**WHEREAS**, in 2024 the Washington State Legislature enacted SB 6157, which allows public employers to provide additional credit or points to a passing examination to applicants who have full professional proficiency or are completely fluent as a native speaker in one or more languages other than English; and

**WHEREAS**, the City of Spokane wishes to implement the provisions of SB 6157 and adopt it as the official hiring practice of the City.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, the City of Spokane does ordain:

**Section 1.** That Section 18.11.040 of the Spokane Municipal Code is amended to read as follows:

**Section 18.11.040 Emergency Communications**

- A. During a crisis, emergency, or public safety situation, all city departments shall make it a priority to offer language access services and, ensure interpretation and translation services are present and available to assist LEP residents with critical

language needs, including, but not limited to, Marshallese and American Sign Language or other alternative accommodations.

- B. If a crisis, emergency, or public safety situation requires posting of warning signs, the department (~~would~~) shall translate those signs into the appropriate (~~significant population or~~) Established (~~languages~~) Language(s) according to neighborhood demographics, as identified by the City's Language Access Program.

**Section 2.** That section 18.11.050 of the Spokane Municipal Code is amended to read as follows:

### **Section 18.11.050 Scope, Implementation and Milestones**

- A. Except where earlier timelines are specified in this section or unless expressly exempted by SMC 18.11.070, all City departments shall have an implemented Language Access Program in place no later than January 1, 2026.
1. As soon as practical after the effective date of this ordinance, the City Council and Planning Department shall henceforth incorporate language access into any adopted departmental operating procedures.
  2. No later than July 1, 2024, each affected city department shall identify those Vital Documents and Public Communication Materials it intends to include within the scope of its departmental LAP.
  3. Commencing with the 2025 Annual Budget of the City, all affected departments shall include LAP planning as a line-item appropriation within any proposed departmental budget, which planning shall be consistent with the scope of its Vital Documents and Public Communication Materials identified pursuant to subsection 2 above.
  4. Commencing with the 2026 Annual Budget of the City, all affected departments shall incorporate Language Access implementation as a line-item appropriation within any proposed departmental budget.
  5. Commencing January 1, 2026, all departmental operating procedures shall be compliant with this Chapter.



B. Subject to allocated funding, the following milestones shall apply to specific operations and functions within the City of Spokane:

1. As soon as practical after the effective date of this ordinance, the City Council shall have drafted and implemented a Language Access Plan that assumes (a) translation of council-generated Public Communication Materials, which may include council ordinances, resolutions, proclamations, salutations, and further which may also include standing committee and subcommittee meeting agendas and materials; and (b) translation and/or interpretation services for council legislative sessions, briefing sessions, and standing committee meetings.
2. As soon as practical after the effective date of this ordinance, the Division of Information Technology shall have drafted and implemented a limited Language Access Plan that assumes translation of digital Public Communication Materials, including but not limited to the City's official website and social media.
3. The timelines in sections A and B above may be adjusted as necessary to comply with the procurement requirements and procedures in [SMC 07.06](#).

C. Consistent with state law and to achieve the goals of this section, the City shall establish policies and procedures to improve the recruitment of applicants for City of Spokane employment who possess professional fluency or are a native speaker in one or more languages other than English.

D. Nothing in this section shall affect, modify, or amend any collective bargaining agreement or Civil Service rule that exists on the effective date of this section.

~~(C)~~ E. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent a department from developing and implementing a multi-year, phased LAP, so long as meaningful implementation begins no later than January 1, 2026.

**Section 3.** Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance.

**Section 4.** Clerical Errors. Upon approval by the city attorney, the city clerk is

authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including scrivener's errors or clerical mistakes; references to other local, state, or federal laws, rules, or regulations; or numbering or referencing of ordinances or their sections and subsections.

**PASSED** by the City Council on \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_  
Council President

Attest:

Approved as to form:

\_\_\_\_\_  
City Clerk

\_\_\_\_\_  
City Attorney

\_\_\_\_\_  
Mayor

\_\_\_\_\_  
Date

\_\_\_\_\_  
Effective Date